1949

Phi Kappa Iota Fraternity and Dr. Floyd F. Hatch v.
Salt Lake City, Earl J. Glade, Fred Tedesco, John B.
Matheson, L. C. Romney, Cleve Wooley and W. Y.
Tipton : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF CASE

All page references used are those of the record. The parties are referred to as in the court below. All italics are ours, unless otherwise indicated.

This is an action by the plaintiff for a declaratory judgment brought under the permissive authority of Title 104, Chapter 64, Utah Code Annotated 1943. It challenges the validity of a certain Salt Lake City ordinance which restricts the location of fraternity and sorority houses in residential "A" districts. In their complaint the plaintiffs seek to have the court declare the ordinance to be discriminatory, arbitrary, capricious and unconstitutional; and the plaintiffs seek injunctive relief to prevent the enforcement of the ordinance against the plaintiffs.

In the complaint it is alleged that the plaintiff, Phi Kappa Iota Fraternity, is a non-profit corporation, affiliated with the University of Utah; that it owns and occupies a fraternity house as an ordinary appurtenance to the University of Utah; that the plaintiff Floyd F. Hatch, is an owner of real property used for residential purposes by him and his family, which property is located within 600 feet of the University of Utah main campus and is designated as 1363 Butler Avenue, Salt Lake City, Utah.

The complaint further alleges that, pursuant to its corporate purposes, the plaintiff fraternity on the 27th day of August, 1948, purchased a residential unit which they occupy as a fraternity house, designated by the street address of 1175 2nd Avenue; that said fraternity house is located within residential "A" district as defined under Section 6715, Chapter 65, Revised Ordinances of Salt Lake City, Utah, 1944. The complaint

alleges that the plaintiff fraternity has expended large sums of money in purchasing and furnishing said housing unit. The complaint further alleges that the defendants have ordered the plaintiff fraternity to vacate the property, to cease using said property as a fraternity house, and have threatened to issue criminal complaints in the event the order is not obeyed; that the defendants in the past have enforced said ordinance according to their interpretation of its terms and have compelled fraternities and sororities appurtenant to the the University of Utah to locate their establishments within 600 feet of the University of Utah campus; that to the east of the University of Utah campus are mountains upon which there are no utilities for sewage water, electrical power or otherwise and that said land is totally unsuited to housing projects, that to the south of the main University of Utah campus is a cemetery which is not suitable for the occupancy of living persons, that to the west of the University of Utah campus there is not available any property within 600 feet suitable for occupancy by fraternities and sororities; that as a result of such situation a large number of fraternities and sororities have been crowded into an area immediately north of the University of Utah campus, and as a result of such crowding and congestion the public safety, convenience, and health have been greatly endangered; that as a further result thereof the plaintiff Dr. Floyd F. Hatch and other property owners within the area 600 feet north from the University of Utah campus have suffered a diminution of value to their property, that

the use and enjoyment thereof have been lessened because of the crowded streets and the noise and disturbance resulting from the overcrowded conditions. That the property of plaintiff, Dr. Floyd F. Hatch and of the other property owners in the vicinity to the north of the University of Utah campus is all located in residential "A" district under the aforesaid zoning ordinance.

The complaint further alleges that said zoning ordinance is arbitrary, discriminatory and capricious and is not proper exercise of any of the police powers of Salt Lake City, but on the contrary said ordinance results in unsafe streets, inadequate housing conditions, and parking facilities, congestion of people and noise, all of which disturb the peace and quiet of Dr. Floyd F. Hatch and other property owners residing within residential "A" district and within 600 feet of the University of Utah campus; that the said ordinance is arbitrary, discriminatory and capricious in the following particulars:

A. That there is no reasonable basis for permitting fraternity organizations to maintain fraternity houses in residential "A" district and at same time limiting them to locations within 600 feet of the land and premises occupied by the University of Utah to which they are incident, that the enforcement of such a restriction is prejudicial to and discriminatory against the plaintiff Floyd F. Hatch and to the other property owners in residential "A" district who own and oc-

cupy property within 600 feet of the University of Utah campus.

B. That said ordinance expressly permits the construction of schools in all residential "A" districts and also specifically permits any use ordinarily appurtenant to the uses of the property for school purposes including the establishment of dormitories, fraternities, sororities and boarding houses occupied by students and faculty members of the schools; that said ordinance puts no restriction on the location of fraternity and sorority houses incident to or appurtenant to *private* schools and that under the terms of said zoning ordinance, fraternities appurtenant to *private* schools may build their fraternity homes at any location within the residential "A" district; that said ordinance then prohibits the maintenance of fraternity houses incident to *public* schools in all residential "A" districts except within 600 feet of the lands and premises occupied by the institution to which they are incident. That there is no reasonable basis for such distinction between fraternity houses of *public* and fraternity houses of *private* schools, and the same is discriminatory, arbitrary, and capricious, as to the plaintiff fraternity.

C. That there is no reasonable basis to justify the selection of the distance of 600 feet as the area within which fraternity houses must be confined. That said distance or limitation is made by said ordinance without regard to street or property lines and in effect discriminates against fraternities and sororities incident to the

University of Utah only and was designed to confine fraternities and sororities of the University of Utah to the locations existing when said ordinance was enacted, without regard to future growth and development of the school.

D. That the ordinance permits one and two family dwellings in residential "A" district, and there is no limit to the number of persons who may reside on premises described as two family dwellings within a residential "A" district, even though said persons are boarders, lodgers or renters and there is no limitation of the number of persons who may reside on premises described as one family dwellings in residential "A" district, except that no more than six persons may reside therein as lodgers or boarders paying rent. That it is discriminatory, and arbitrary to prohibit the use of one and two family dwellings for residential purposes by members of a fraternity appurtenant to a public school.

E. That there is no reasonable basis for placing fraternities in a restricted classification insofar as the maintenance of a fraternity house is concerned.

The complaint further alleges that since the ordinances restricting fraternities to 600 feet from the premises occupied by the University of Utah was passed, that the University of Utah has more than doubled in size and enrollment. That recently the University of Utah acquired approximately 300 acres of land which was formerly part of Fort Douglas Military Reservation and that thereafter Salt Lake City enacted a new

ordinance by the terms of which all property within six hundred feet of said newly acquired property was placed in the residential district "AA". That the effect of this later ordinance has been to further restrict and concentrate the development of fraternities in the area immediately surrounding the property of the plaintiff Hatch.

In their answer, the defendants allege that the ordinances complained of are within the powers granted to Salt Lake City by law to enact and that the advisability and wisdom of such ordinances are not within the province of the court to review, such matter being solely within the discretion and good judgment of the Board of City Commissioners of Salt Lake City. Upon the issues thus joined, the case was tried before the Honorable Roald A. Hogenson, sitting without a jury and on February 28, 1949 a decree was entered by the trial court deciding the issues in favor of the defendants and against the plaintiffs, no cause of action, dismissing plaintiffs' complaint, and dissolving the temporary injunction. From that decree the plaintiffs have prosecuted this appeal.

THE FACTS

In 1937 a group of residents of Salt Lake City, residing in the residential "A" area involved in this case, petitioned the City Commission of Salt Lake City for an amendment of Chapter 47, Section 4710 of the Building Code of Salt Lake City, restricting the location of

dormitories and fraternity or sorority houses to an area within one-eighth of a mile distance from the lands and premises occupied by the institution to which they were incident. This petition was referred to the City Planning and Zoning commission and by them returned to the Commission on December 16, 1938, with the recommendation that the petition be granted, the distance being modified from one-eighth of a mile to 600 feet (Exhibit A). A hearing was held upon the petition and the Commission ordered the Zoning ordinances changed (Exhibit B), and thereupon Section 6715, Chapter 65, Revised Ordinances of Salt Lake City, 1944 was adopted. That ordinance, so far as material here, reads as follows:

“Section 6715. Residential ‘A’ district.

(a) In residential ‘A’ district no building or premises shall be used or maintained, and no building shall be erected or altered so as to be arranged, intended or designed to be used for other than one of the following uses:

1. One-family dwellings.
2. Two-family dwellings.
3. Schools.

* * *

(b) In a Residential ‘A’ district buildings and uses, such as are ordinarily appurtenant to any of the uses listed above, but not involving the conduct of business, shall be permitted, subject to the limitations herein provided.

1. Accessory uses customarily incident to the above uses.

* * * *

5. In a one-family dwelling the renting of rooms to not more than six (6) persons for lodging purposes only, or the furnishing of table board to not more than six (6) persons, or the furnishing a combination of the above to not more than six (6) persons; *provided, however, that these provisions shall not be applicable to a two-family dwelling.*

6. *Dormitories, fraternity or sorority houses or boarding houses occupied only by the faculty or students of a public educational institution and supervised by the authorities thereof, subject, however, to the express condition that such houses shall not be located or established more than 600 feet distant from the lands and premises occupied by the institution to which they are incident.*

The 600-foot restriction had no application, except with reference to the University of Utah (R. 106-105). That restriction was chosen because the petition first requested one-eighth ($\frac{1}{8}$) of a mile and that distance embraced all existing fraternity and sorority houses, except the one at 51 Wolcott Street and the one at 1371 East South Temple (R. 110). The fact that a "bunch" of people by petition stated they didn't want fraternities in their district and indicated they wanted the distance 600 feet is primarily the reason the distance was so fixed (R. 113). The amendment was directed to the vicinity contiguous to the University and it was in that

particular district alone that they were concerned. When the 600-foot restriction was adopted, no place other than the University area was studied at the time. (R. 114 — Exhibit C). Indeed, there are no schools in Salt Lake City other than the University of Utah that have fraternities or sororities (R. 55).

The City Planning Engineer testified that the zoning work of Salt Lake City had been under his charge ever since it was established except for 1927. He stated that the portion of the A district that is within the 600-foot limit is equally well suited for fine residential homes as the area outside of that limit (R. 93). The only reason for holding the 600-foot restriction was to keep the students close to the campus and to cut down the added traffic congestion incident to fraternity and sorority houses (R. 94). The additional traffic congestion caused by fraternity houses was one of the strong reasons to segregate fraternity and sorority houses, and where they are segregated, like the one at 51 North Wolcott, there is ample parking space and there is no particular parking problem (R. 101-102). Out of the eighteen fraternities that have homes, there is only one aside from the plaintiff that isn't congested within the 600 foot area. There are sixteen fraternities within the 600-foot zone north of the campus (R. 100). In the 600-foot area the streets are more than full with traffic and parking (R. 101). The zoning expert admitted that it would be a disadvantage to the property owners on Butler Avenue (where Plaintiff Hatch re-

sides) to have the five new groups that are looking for homes, locate within the 600-foot zone, which is very congested right now, and yet it is equally well suited to residential purposes as the AA district (R. 104). The more congested and numerous fraternities are around a given house, the more onerous it is (R. 131). Two sorority houses have been built on Butler Avenue since the plaintiff moved there. The congestion and parking along Butler Avenue has increased since 1939. Parking has become solid almost all the way down the street, particularly on Monday and Friday evenings when meetings and parties are held. Even during the time when the University is not in session, at night, and at times when there are no functions at Kingsbury Hall, there is a crowded and congested condition in the evening (R. 135). There is a lot of parking, particularly at the Alphi Phi and Phi Mu houses on Monday and week-ends, and the organizations on First South also park on Butler Avenue (R. 136).

The streets on North Wolcott and Second Avenue are noticeably wider than on Butler Avenue or Federal Way, and there being fewer fraternities on Wolcott and Second Avenue, it is possible to get parking space and there is not so much likelihood of the street being blocked by parking on an angle (R. 139-140). The fraternity and sorority students at the University of Utah own 282 cars in addition to which a number of the students drive cars from time to time belonging to their parents (R. 76). The zoning expert did not think that

all fraternities should be crowded into the 600 foot strip (R. 103).

The second reason given why it was desirable to confine the fraternities and sororities into the 600 foot area was to have them located closer to the campus. The effect of the ordinance is to drive fraternities to the more distant B zones or to crowd them into the already congested area to the north of the campus. East of the campus is closed by the military reservation and south of the campus is closed by the cemetery; the north of the campus is closed beyond the 600 foot strip in the immediate vicinity of Butler Avenue by the AA zoning (R. 103, Exhibit 1, Exhibit D). Along the west side of the campus there are churches and a business section and residences. There is a city water pool and a city park on the northwest corner of the campus. There are no fraternities or sororities located in the area west of 13th East and generally all the fraternity and sorority houses of the University are located in the area beginning on the corner of First South east of Wolcott, north about two blocks to the Phi Kappa house and west to University Street (R. 58-59). There are twelve fraternities and seven fraternities that have houses in the area of First South and Perry Avenue (R. 60). Most of the homes between the Emery House on Second South and Carleson Hall on Fifth South are rather small (R. 109). Other than the 600 foot area to the north, fraternities must look to the more distant B zones. (See zoning map)

It was stipulated that the court may take judicial notice of all the planning ordinances of the City prior to and subsequent to 1939 (R. 79). It was also stipulated that the red line on Exhibit D that goes up through the center of the map is the present 600-foot line from the University campus (R. 79); and the heavy green line that comes up the south side of South Temple and follows the South Side of Federal Way and then on up through the center of the map is the boundary for the AA zone. The location of the various fraternities and sororities are indicated on this map at the houses and addresses noted, and it was stipulated that the map correctly shows what it purports to represent (R. 80).

In the interpretation of its ordinances, the city had denied to a fraternity the right to move into the Carter home which was on a lot that was partially within and partly outside of the 600 foot limit (R. 97).

The witness, Don Ogden, testified that he is president of the plaintiff fraternity (R. 71); that he spent as much time as he could along with the committee, two assistants, to hunt for a suitable house, but that the only house available within the 600 feet limit was the Adams home and the owner wanted \$40,000 cash for that home; that for the entire year, they searched through the areas around the campus for a home, including the area west of the campus (R. 72); that they exhausted every effort within the 600 foot limit and within the Butler district looking for a home (R. 73).

That on August 27th, 1948, the plaintiff fraternity entered into a contract to purchase the property located at 1175 Second Avenue for \$35,000, payable \$500.00 down; \$4500 on possession or on or before September 15th, 1948, and \$2000 on or before three months from the date of possession; that all payments have been kept up on the contract except the last \$2,000 and arrangements were in process in regard to that sum. That the plaintiff fraternity entered into possession on or about September 12th, 1948 (R. 74). It was not necessary to remodel the home to adapt it to fraternity uses. There are four car garages back of the house and a cement patio that will park about 8 cars plus a long driveway that would accommodate another 6 or 8 cars, in addition to the front footage of the house. That 25 students were then residing at the house and the house would amply provide housing for 30 or more (R. 75).

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

1. That the court erred in its finding that the said ordinance Section 6715 of Chapter 65, of the Revised Ordinances of Salt Lake City, Utah, 1944 is not unreasonably discriminatory, arbitrary or capricious in any of the particulars alleged by plaintiffs or otherwise, but is valid and constitutional, in that such finding is not supported by and is against the weight of the evidence.

2. That the court erred in failing to find that as a result of the congestion of the fraternities and sorori-

ties within the 600 foot area immediately north of the University of Utah campus the public safety, convenience and health have been greatly endangered.

3. That the court erred in failing to find that as a further result of the congestion of the fraternities and sororities within the 600 foot area, the plaintiff Dr. Floyd F. Hatch has suffered detriment in the use, enjoyment and value of his property.

4. That the court erred in its finding Number 7 and each part thereof in that such finding is not supported by and is against the weight of the evidence.

5. That the court erred in failing to find that the zoning ordinance is arbitrary, discriminatory and capricious and is not a proper exercise of any of the police powers of Salt Lake City and in failing to find that it, results in congested and unsafe streets, inadequate housing conditions, and congestion of people and noise.

6. That the court erred in failing to find that the allegations of Paragraph IX (a) of plaintiff's complaint are true.

7. That the court erred in failing to find that the allegations of Paragraph IX (b) of the complaint are true.

8. That the court erred in failing to find that the allegations of Paragraph IX (c) of the complaint are true.

9. That the court erred in failing to find that the allegations of Paragraph IX (d) of the complaint are true.

10. That the court erred in failing to find that the allegations of Paragraph IX (e) of the complaint are true.

11. That the court erred in failing to declare the ordinance to be discriminatory, arbitrary, capricious and unconstitutional.

12. That the court erred in refusing to permanently enjoin the defendants from attempting to enforce the ordinance against the plaintiff fraternity or from attempting to enforce the said ordinance so as to compel additional fraternity units to locate within the vicinity of the plaintiff Hatch.

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