1949

Phi Kappa Iota Fraternity and Dr. Floyd F. Hatch v.
Salt Lake City, Earl J. Glade, Fred Tedesco, John B.
Matheson, L. C. Romney, Cleve Wooley and W. Y.
Tipton : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE PLAINTIFFS CAN ONLY RELY UPON THOSE FEATURES OF THE ORDINANCE WHICH AFFECT THEM IN THEIR PROPERTY RIGHTS AND ONLY TO THE EXTENT THAT SUCH RIGHTS ARE AFFECTED.

We wish to refer the court first to a universal principle of constitutional law that will in itself dispose of all claims of unconstitutional discriminations made by the plaintiffs. It should be remembered, in this connection, that plaintiff fraternity acquired what interest it has in the real property here involved with full knowledge of the existence of the City ordinance and that it prohibited the use of said property for a fraternity house. As to it there can be no discrimination. It owned no property when the ordinance was passed. It chose to defy the ordinance and to put itself in the position where it now claims it is discriminated against. The ordinance was passed 10 years ago. Can it now be said that

a person who elects to disregard it 10, 15, or 50 years after its passage has any standing in court to say that it discriminates against him?

The principle of constitutional law to which we refer is stated in 16 C.J.S., page 179, Section 88, as follows:

“The unconstitutionality of a statute on the ground that it denies equal rights and privileges by discriminating between persons or classes of persons generally may not be raised by one not belonging to the class allegedly discriminated against.”

The same rule is stated in 11 Am Jur. Page 752, Section 111, as follows:

“Even though a person may come within the main purpose of a statute, he has no standing to raise constitutional questions which do not directly affect him, for unless a party can show that he himself has been wrongfully included in the terms of a law, he can have no just ground of complaint. Hence, a litigant can be heard to question the validity of a statute only when, and in so far as, it is applied to his disadvantage.”

In *Cronin v. Adams*, 192 U.S. 108, 28 L. Ed. 365, the court held that a saloon keeper cannot challenge the constitutionality of an ordinance excluding females from saloons, saying:

“What cause of action, then has plaintiff in error? He is not a female, nor delegated to cham-

pion any grievances females may have under the ordinance if they have any.”

Retz v. Leghston, 10 Cal. App. 685, 103 P. 363. In this case it was held that there where an ordinance forbidding saloons except in certain defined limits of the city, contained a proviso that existing hotels outside such limits might conduct bars, one living outside such limits, who had no hotel erected either before or after the passage of the ordinance, could not object that the ordinance was void because it unreasonably discriminated between existing hotels and those thereafter built.

In *Joseph Schlitz Brewing Co. v. City of Milwaukee*, 286 N. W. 602, the statute imposed an occupational tax on operators of grain elevators and warehouses and exempted them from municipal or state taxation. It did not impose the tax on owners of grain which is not stored in warehouses or elevators. The City of Milwaukee attacked the statute claiming it unconstitutional “because personal property owned by one taxpayer and in elevators or warehouses would be taxed thereunder while the same kind of personal property owned by another but not in warehouses or elevators would be subject to personal property tax.” The court says:

“If there were discriminations, as contended by the city, the city is not affected by the discrimination and has no standing to raise the constitutional point. This has been so frequently held that it needs no further exposition here.”

In *Platt v. Philbrick*, 47 P. 2d 302, the statute permitted the lawful occupant of privately owned lands to take, hunt, or kill on such lands predatory or destructive birds or mammals and to possess and carry firearms within the boundaries of the game refuge. No one else could kill such birds or animals or have or carry firearms within the refuge. Plaintiff contended that the protection to wild game afforded by the statute would result in such an increase thereof that her garden might be injured by the invasion of predatory birds and wild life and that the statute was discriminatory between occupants against nonoccupants. The court held plaintiff could not urge this objection quoting from another decision as follows:

“ ‘It is well established that a charge of unconstitutional discrimination can only be raised in a case where this issue is involved in the determination of the action, and then only by the person or a member of the class of persons discriminated against. *Estabrook Co. v. Inc. Acc. Com.*, 177 Cal. 767, 177 P. 848; 5 Cal. Jur. 622, Sections 52, 53; 6 R. C. L. 89, Sections 87, 88, 89; 12 C. J. 768, Section 189.’ ”

Ex Parte Irish, 121 Kan. 72, 250 P. 1056, 61 A. L. R. 332. Here Irish was convicted of violating a city ordinance of Holton, which provided for payment of a license fee of \$150 per year by any nonresident who sells bread or bakery products in the city. Irish brought a writ of habeas corpus but did not allege he was a nonresident. The court held that he could not rely on the

discrimination between residents and nonresidents saying:

“In 12 C. J. 760, the rule is declared to be that ‘it is a firmly established principle of law that the constitutionality of a statute may not be attached by one whose rights are not affected by the operation of the statute.’

“A large list of cases is there cited to support the statement quoted. 12 C. J. 768, says: ‘The unconstitutionality of a statute, on the ground that it denies equal rights and privileges by discriminating between persons or classes of persons, may not be raised by one not belonging to the class alleged to be discriminated against.’ ”

In *Heald v. District of Columbia*, 66 L. Ed. 853, 259 U.S. 114, the District of Columbia levied a tax of a certain per cent of the value of intangible property of persons resident or engaged in business within the District. The executors of Peters’ estate paid the tax under protest and brought suit to recover it back, claiming the act void because it required every nonresident who engages in business in the District to pay the tax on all property wheresoever situated. The Supreme Court held this objection was of no avail to the executors since all property of the estate was located in the District and the owners are residents within the District, saying:

“It has been repeatedly held that one who would strike down a state statute as violative of the Federal Constitution must show that he is within the class of persons with respect to whom

the act is unconstitutional, and that the alleged unconstitutional feature injures him.”

This same rule is stated by Judge Brandeis in *Premier-Pabst Sales Co. v. Grosscup*, 80 L. Ed. 1155, 298 U. S. 226, as follows:

“We have no occasion to consider the constitutional question, because it appears that plaintiff is without standing to present it. One who would strike down a state statute as obnoxious to the Federal Constitution, must show that the alleged unconstitutional feature injures him.”

Our Supreme Court in *Utah Mfrs. Assn. v. Stewart*, 82 Utah 198, 23 P. 2d 231, recognized this rule. There plaintiff, who was not engaged in selling alcohol but would only be a purchaser, contended the statute creating the state alcohol warehouse and giving the warehouse manufacturer a monopoly on the sale of alcohol was invalid. The court says:

“Plaintiff contends the law is unreasonable and discriminatory. If this were true, we do not see how plaintiff can lawfully complain, since there is no discrimination against it or other manufacturers who use alcohol, since all are subject to the same regulations. Plaintiff is not one who seeks to sell in competition with the manager, but a user who is afforded an opportunity to purchase through or from the warehouse manager. The only manner in which plaintiff and others similarly situated claim to be injured is that they are required to pay a higher price for alcohol because of the charges authorized by statute to be

collected by the manager, and the fees imposed by rules and regulations of the Attorney General and the Governor. In no other way does plaintiff allege it is injured in its property or rights.”

The case of *Wulfshon v. Bruden*, 241 N.Y. 288, 150 N.E. 120, 43 A. L. R. 651, involved a zoning ordinance. The plaintiff sought to erect an apartment house and attacked the ordinance requiring a certain setback from the street and a certain backyard. The court says:

“Appellant complains that the regulations for setbacks are unreasonable because they do not graduate such setbacks to the size of the building but require the same area for a small as for a large building. Such an argument is not available to him. The only question which he is entitled to argue is that these setbacks are unreasonable in the case of a building four and five stories high and designed to accommodate nearly 600 people. It will be time enough to consider whether they should not be reduced in the case of a smaller building when somebody desiring to erect such smaller building complains of them as unreasonable.”

The case of *Heimerle v. Village of Bronxville*, 5 N.Y. S. 2d 1002, involved a zoning ordinance and will be quoted from extensively later in this brief as, in our opinion, it disposes of plaintiffs’ case as a whole. On the question now being discussed the court says:

“The fact that other property within the 200 foot distance in other locations may be unreasonably affected, if such fact exists, does not aid

the plaintiffs. The only question which the plaintiffs are entitled to argue is that the restriction is unreasonable as applied to this property. The burden of proof on that subject has not been sustained by the plaintiffs.”

While we think the rules of law enunciated by the foregoing authorities dispose of plaintiffs’ case we shall proceed to answer their arguments as made under subdivisions A, B, C, D, E and F of their brief. We shall consider each of these subdivisions under Point II.

POINT II

PLAINTIFFS HAVE GIVEN THE ORDINANCE AN ERRONEOUS CONSTRUCTION UNDER SUBDIVISIONS A, B, C, D, E AND F OF THEIR BRIEF, AND IN ADDITION ARE NOT ENTITLED TO URGE THE ALLEGED DISCRIMINATORY FEATURES THEREIN ASSERTED.

A

The ordinance, subsection (a) prohibits all uses except those specified therein, for it says that in “Residential “A” District no building or premises shall be used or maintained, etc., for other than one of the following uses,” naming them specifically. This all inclusive prohibition is then modified in subsection (b) so as to permit uses which are ordinarily appurtenant to the uses specified in subsection (a) such as are specifically mentioned in the succeeding subdivisions numbered 1 to 7, inclusive. When subdivision 6 refers to dormitories, fraternity or sorority houses occupied *only* by the faculty

of students of *public educational institutions*, that opens the prohibition in subsection (a) only to the extent expressed, namely, these houses must be occupied *only* by faculty or students of *public educational institutions*. This clearly does not permit fraternities in Residential "A" District incident to private schools. Plaintiffs not only concede, but argue that the word "schools," a permitted use under subsection (a), include both private and public schools. When the incidental use permitted under subdivision 6 by its language only refers to public educational institutions it is perfectly clear that the City authorities were permitting fraternities in a Residential "A" District only when incident to a public school. If subsection (a) already permitted fraternities in Residential "A" District as a part of a "school" there would be no need at all of subsection (b,6) to grant the right. We admit there is a distinction made in the ordinance between fraternity houses incident to public schools and those incident to private schools, the former being permitted and the latter prohibited. If it be claimed that this distinction involves an unconstitutional discrimination, neither of the plaintiffs is in a position to urge it, under the law cited above, as neither is a private school, nor is either a fraternity seeking to come into Residential "A" District as an incident to a private school. Furthermore, there is no showing that the distinction is an unreasonable one, the burden of proof being upon the plaintiff to make such showing.

B

Under subdivision B of their brief plaintiffs likewise misconstrue the ordinance and they say that the ordinance permits without limitation the number of boarders or lodgers who may live in a two-family dwelling. In Section (a) every use is prohibited other than one-family dwellings, two-family dwellings, etc. Neither the words "one-family dwelling" nor the words "two-family dwelling" contemplates a use of a dwelling to house boarders or lodgers. Without subdivision 5 of subsection (b) the use of any dwelling for boarders or lodgers would be absolutely forbidden in Residential "A" District. Subdivision 5 so far removes this ban as to permit 6 boarders or lodgers in a one-family dwelling, but expressly says that such provision does not apply to a two-family dwelling, and hence no boarders or lodgers are permitted in a two-family residence in Residential "A" District. That the foregoing is the proper construction of subsection (a) is shown by the fact that under Section 6717 (a-2) of the 1944 Revised Ordinances, boarding or lodging houses for the first time are made permissible in Residential "B" and "B-2" Districts. There is, therefore, no discrimination between two-family dwellings and fraternity houses, assuming that a fraternity house is an equivalent of a boarding or lodging house, as no boarders or lodgers are permissible in a two-family dwelling in Residential "A" District.

C, D, E AND F

With respect to subdivisions C, D, E, and F of plaintiffs' brief, we submit the authorities hereinafter appearing. We desire to add here the following:

As to subdivision "C," plaintiff Hatch is not any more discriminated against than any other person who finds himself in a particular zone where other uses than one-family or two-family uses are permitted. If there are residences in a commercial zone, there is the natural subjection to new and additional commercial enterprises coming into the area to the detriment of the residential feature. Yet commercial zones are selected and confined in many instances to small areas as was the case in *Marshall v. Salt Lake City*, hereinafter cited and quoted. The ordinance attached does not confine fraternities to a 600 foot area. Fraternities are permissible in Residential "B" area to the west, northwest, and southwest of the University. The City is under no obligation to so establish fraternity zones as will provide already built houses suitable for fraternities. As a matter of fact the evidence discloses there are no more houses available within the 600 foot area and that the plaintiff fraternity for that reason went outside that area. All other fraternities were established without any action being taken by plaintiff Hatch. To strike the ordinance down in this case will not in any wise relieve Hatch. All the fraternities and sororities that could locate within the 600 foot area have already done so and all but two did so while the entire area of Residential "A"

was open and available to them. To reopen Residential "A" to fraternities and sororities will not prevent new ones from locating within the 600 foot area if a suitable house can there be obtained. The ordinance fixing the 600 foot limitation was passed in January, 1939. No action was taken by Hatch during the ten year interval against this ordinance. Neither the complaint nor the evidence shows any necessity now for his taking the present action for the evidence shows that the plaintiff fraternity could not and did not acquire a house within the 600 foot limitation. Consequently there is no threat now of any additional burden upon Hatch. So whether the fraternity should be permitted to use the house on Second Avenue for a chapter is of no concern to Hatch. Striking down the ordinance will not cause any of the fraternities already located to move. There will be just as much traffic congestion and other disturbances incident to fraternities and sororities in Hatch's neighborhood regardless of whether the plaintiff fraternity is or is not permitted in the Second Avenue house. There is no evidence that any other fraternity is threatening to invade this 600 foot area while the evidence is to the effect that there is no house now available within that area for a fraternity. The evidence further discloses that there are numerous houses in close proximity to the University in Residential "B" which are of such a character as to be suitable for fraternities and sororities. There is absolutely no showing, therefore, why the extraordinary remedy of injunction should be invoked in this case in

behalf of plaintiff Hatch or why the ordinance should be declared invalid as to him.

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